
Minutes from the pre-proposal conference for Solicitation #SBE20014R0001, Foreign Language 

Training on April 29, 2014 

 

Introduction 

 

The Contracting Officer welcomed all attendees. 

 

The USG was represented by:  

Christopher Pixley – Contracting Officer 

Werner Sips – Procurement Supervisor 

Nicole Janssens – Contracting Agent 

Marcella Singleton – Human Resources Officer 

Barbara Simpson – Human Resources Assistant 

 

Discussion of the Solicitation Package 

 

It was noted that the offerors must complete boxes 12, 17, and 30 on page 1 of the SF-1449 and 

highlighted that Box 12 refers to prompt payment discounts. 

 

Offerors were instructed to leave box 23 and Box 24 page 1 of the SF-1449 blank. 

 

It was noted that, in accordance with Clause 52.222-50 Combatting Trafficking in Persons, the 

USG has a zero tolerance policy regarding the trafficking in persons and that every instance of 

alleged trafficking will be examined by the USG and could result in termination of employees or 

subcontractors, suspension of contract payments or contract termination.   

 

It was noted that all offerors currently registered in the SAM (System for Award.Management) 

database must complete paragraph (b) Section 5, Representations and Certifications.  Those 

currently not registered in SAM must complete sections (c) through (o). 

 

It was highlighted that the Defense Base Act information as specified in Section 3 must be filled 

out. 

 

In reference to Section 3, it was also noted that all offerors must submit a complete list of 

references with specific points of contact and complete contact information.   

 

Regarding questions, it was reiterated that all questions should be submitted in writing. The 

questions will be collated with a Q&A posted on post’s website and FedBizOpps.  

 

The attached questions were asked during the conference or prior to the conference. 

 

 

Enclosure:  Questions and Answers 

  



 

 Questions and Answers No.1  

Solicitation number S-BE200-14-R-0001 

Foreign Language Training  

 

 

1. Question:  

How is the timetable of lessons throughout the day determined? Is there an established 

schedule or is the Contractor free to schedule lessons as it wishes within the working day?  

 

Answer: 

On the enrollment form, each student lists their available hours for classes.  The 

Contractor has some flexibility with scheduling, but the schedule must be coordinated 

with the student.   

 

2. Question:  

What volume of training is delivered at USNATO?  

 

(*) Answer: 

Approximately, 25 students enroll per quarter at USNATO.  

 

(*)The data provided is for informational purposes only and under no circumstances shall 

be construed to change any terms or conditions or requirements within the solicitation.  It 

is each offeror’s decision on whether to use or not to use this information.  Under no 

circumstances shall the U.S. Government be liable for this data or shall it become the basis 

for a request to adjust rates once the contract is awarded.   

 

3. Question:  

Solicitation page 42, (d) (1) states “If insurance is required by the solicitation”. 

Is insurance required by this solicitation?  

 

Answer:  

Yes. The offeror is required to maintain insurance in accordance with the Belgian law.  

 

See Page 40:  Addendum to Contract Clauses, FAR and DOSAR Clauses not represented 

in part 12.  Clause  652.242-73: Authorization and performance (AUG 1999) states: 

 

“(a) The contractor warrants the following: 

 

(1) That is has obtained authorization to operate and do business in the country or 

countries in which this contract will be performed; 

(2) That is has obtained all necessary licenses and permits required to perform this 

contract; and, 

(3) That it shall comply fully with all laws, decrees, labor standards, and regulations of 

said country or countries during the performance of this contract. 

 



(b) If the party actually performing the work will be a subcontractor or joint venture 

partner, then such subcontractor or joint venture partner agrees to the requirements of 

paragraph (a) of this clause”. 

 

4. Question:  

Are Field Trips run as a free-standing element open to all, or are they an integral part of 

each training course?  

 

Answer: No. Field Trips are not a free standing element open to all.  

See page 10: Section 1 – The Schedule, paragraph 2:   

“Instruction may also be supplemented by formally arranged in-country immersion 

opportunities including field-trips that are designed to increase the comfort-level and 

livability quotient of students”. 

 

5. Question:  

Offer Submission Deadline:  There is a discrepancy between the Solicitation document 

and FedBizOpps.gov.  The document states May 16, 2014/ 16:00 hrs “local time”, 

whereas FedBizOpps states 16:00 hrs “EST”.  Which is correct? 

 

Answer:  

See Amendment 2.  The deadline for submission of offers has been extended to June 13, 

2014/16:00 CET.   

 

6. Question:  

What is the required format for submission of offers?  Is electronic submission acceptable 

(e.g. by email) or are hard copies required?  If hard copy how many copies are required? 

 

Answer:  

Electronic submission is not acceptable. 

See Page 1, cover page SF-1449 – block 28: The contractor is required to sign this 

document and to return 2 copies to issuing office.  

 

7. Question:  

Evaluation Factors:  The Solicitation states that award “will be made to the lowest priced, 

acceptable, responsible offeror”.  Are “acceptable” and “responsible” binary factors – i.e. 

yes/no qualifying criteria?  Or are offerors rated relatively against each other under these 

factors?  Is a price versus quality weighting employed when evaluating offers? 

 

Answer: 

“acceptable” and “responsible” are binary factors – i.e. yes/no qualifying criteria.  

Offerors are not rated relatively against each other.    



 

See page 45: Section 4 - Evaluation Factors:  

“The Government will determine acceptability by assessing the offeror's compliance with the 

terms of the RFP”. 

“The Government will determine contractor responsibility by analyzing whether the apparent 

successful offeror complies with the requirements of FAR 9.1, including:  

 adequate financial resources or the ability to obtain them;  

 ability to comply with the required performance period, taking into consideration all 

existing commercial and governmental business commitments;  

 satisfactory record of integrity and business ethics;  

 necessary organization, experience, and skills or the ability to obtain them;  

 necessary equipment and facilities or the ability to obtain them; and  

 be otherwise qualified and eligible to receive an award under applicable laws and 

regulations”.  

8. Question: 

The Solicitation gives minimum and maximum amounts of 300 sessions (hours) and 4000 

sessions per year.  This is an extremely large range.  Please provide a best estimate of the 

actual volumes you expect, at least for the Base Year. 

 

(*) Answer:  

Class enrollment varies from quarter to quarter because of employees’ transfers and 

schedules.  The number of sessions depends on the number of students and their levels.  

On average, there are 3,500 sessions per year.  

 

(*)The data provided is for informational purposes only and under no circumstances shall 

be construed to change any terms or conditions or requirements within the solicitation.  It 

is each offeror’s decision on whether to use or not to use this information.  Under no 

circumstances shall the U.S. Government be liable for this data or shall it become the basis 

for a request to adjust rates once the contract is awarded.   

 

9. Question: 

What is the anticipated balance (e.g. a percentage or amount of sessions) between French 

language training and Dutch language training? 

 

(*) Answer: 

 French 92%, Dutch 8% (Dutch classes tend to be individual courses).  

 

(*)The data provided is for informational purposes only and under no circumstances shall 

be construed to change any terms or conditions or requirements within the solicitation.  It 



is each offeror’s decision on whether to use or not to use this information.  Under no 

circumstances shall the U.S. Government be liable for this data or shall it become the basis 

for a request to adjust rates once the contract is awarded.   

 

10. Question:  

What is the anticipated balance between group training and individual training (e.g. a 

percentage or amount of sessions)? 

 

(*) Answer:  

75% for group, and 25% for individual. 

 

(*)The data provided is for informational purposes only and under no circumstances shall 

be construed to change any terms or conditions or requirements within the solicitation.  It 

is each offeror’s decision on whether to use or not to use this information.  Under no 

circumstances shall the U.S. Government be liable for this data or shall it become the basis 

for a request to adjust rates once the contract is awarded.   

11. Question:  

Is the Contractor required to provide published course books to all learners at its own 

expense?  If, so can you give an approximate number of learners per year? 

 

Answer:  

Yes, see page 11:  

Section 1-The Schedule, paragraph 4.1:  

“The Contractor shall provide all instructional materials including texts, class exercises, 

handouts, exams, and audio-visual media”. 
Section 1-The Schedule paragraph 4.5:  

“The Contractor shall provide other required classroom materials such as newspapers, 

magazines, dictionaries, or photocopied materials, written in the designated language for use 

by students in exercises or testing”. 

 

(*)  approximate number:  432 students per year (on average 108 students per quarter) 

 

(*)The data provided is for informational purposes only and under no circumstances shall 

be construed to change any terms or conditions or requirements within the solicitation.  It 

is each offeror’s decision on whether to use or not to use this information.  Under no 

circumstances shall the U.S. Government be liable for this data or shall it become the basis 

for a request to adjust rates once the contract is awarded.   

 

12. Question:  

The pricing model for each year indicates 4,000 hours of tuition and only 40 sessions of 

Field Trips.  Is it correct that one session of Field Trip is 1 hour in length?  So is 40 hours 

of Field Trips the maximum per year? 

 

 



Answer:  

See amendment A003 to the solicitation.  The pricing schedule for field trips has been 

changed for offerors to quote a price per field trip and there are now two session times. 

One session is 2 hours and the other session is for 4 hours.    

 

13. Question:  

What is the anticipated duration of each separate Field Trip? 

 

Answer:  

See answer to question 12. 

 

14. Question:  

Student Testing:  The Contractor is required to use tests from a list provided in paragraph 

5.1.3 of the Solicitation.  Will the Government provide access to such tests? 

 

Answer:   

The Department of State will not provide access or copies of the testing material. The 

offeror will have to make their own arrangements with these organizations. Paragraph 

5.1.3 has been revised in Amendment A003 to the solicitation for the number of 

acceptable associations and/or organizations.    

 

15. Question:   

Could you specify a bit more what you mean by “administration” (page 2/4)?  

 

Answer:  

See Section 1- The Schedule, paragraph 5 Specific Tasks. 

  

16. Question:  

On page 10/66 you don’t mention writing skills. But on page 16/66 “Performance” 

students still have to write a test. Contradiction?  

 

Answer:  

This is not a contradiction; the purpose is to evaluate the student’s reading comprehension.  

This could be done using oral or written methods. 

 

See page 13/66: Section 1 – The Schedule, paragraph 5.1.2:   

“After reading communications, messages, or letters written in French and/or Dutch, the 

student will be able to comprehend, translate, and correctly summarize the purpose and 

content of the written communication that was provided.  The student must be able to 

translate the requested information or pre-planned reply, and prepare a written response to 

the selected communication.  At least 75% of the students completing the training shall 

correctly recognize, comprehend, and summarize the written communication, and to 

translate the correct response to the written communication at least 85% of the time” 

   



17. Question: 

On page 16/66 you mention standardized test.  Are those our or your tests?   

 

Answer:  

See answer to question 14.  

 

18. Question: On page 20/66 you mention the different levels.  Most European Companies 

work with CEFR (European frame reference). Can we use the CEFR?  

 

See Page 20:  No. See Section 1, Attachment 3: Language Proficiency Rating Scales. 

The contractor shall use the listed Rating Scales.  

 

19. Question: On page 10/66 you say political topics.  CLL wishes not to discuss political 

topics for obvious reasons.  Is this OK?  

 

Answer: No. See page 10: Section 1, paragraph 2. Performance Work Statement: 

“The Contractor shall provide French and/or Dutch language instruction to adult students 

that focuses on the professional, cultural, political and economic fields   typically found in 

mass-media publications for the foreign language speaking public”.   

 

20. Question:  

Periodical Tests: is this every 2/3/4/ months? Page 13/66? 

 

Answer:  

The Contractor shall evaluate the students in accordance with Section 1 paragraph 5.1.3 

Student Testing  

  

21. Question: 

 Individual or group lessons.  Only one price? 

 

Answer: Yes. See pages 4 thru 8:  Section 1- The Schedule, paragraph – 1.2 Price: 

 one price per session for individual or group lessons.  

 

22. Question:  

Page 16/66 percentages to be achieved.  What happens if more students fail?  Breach of 

contract? 

 

Answer:  

Yes, it is a breach of contract.  See page 18:  Section 1 – The Schedule, paragraph 7.1. 

Quality Assurance and Surveillance Plan and paragraph 7.1.2 Standard, Inspection Clause 

(FAR 52.212.4, Contract Terms and Conditions – Commercial Items). 

 

23. Question: 

Can we do the offer in French? (we already did so for NATO) 

 



 

Answer:   

No. See page 43 – Addendum to Solicitation Provisions, Clause 52.214-34 Submission of 

offers in the English Language (Apr 1991). 

 

24. Question: 

Who is the current incumbent of this Program?  

 

Answer:  The current incumbent is the company “NewLanguage”. 

 

25. Question:  

How many instructors are there currently? 

 

Answer: 9 

 

26. Question:  

Must instructors be E.U. Citizens with right to work visas in Belgium?  

 

Answer:  

Instructors do not have to be EU citizens.  However, the contractor is required to be in full 

compliance with all Belgian Worker compensation and employment laws.  

 

27. Question:   

Does the Government have a preferred vendor for testing materials or is it up to the 

Contractor to choose all books, textbooks, etc.?  

 

Answer: 

No, the Government does not have a preferred vendor. However for testing materials, 

please see page 13: Section 1- The Schedule, paragraph 5.1.3. Student Testing, which 

states: “The contractor shall administer tests on knowledge and proficiency as a required 

element of evaluating the student’s progress in training module or lesson. For books and 

textbooks, the contractor shall provide materials that facilitate increasing proficiency 

based on ability as outlined in Attachment 3: Language Proficiency Rating Scales. 

 

28. Question:  

How much funding has been allocated for this contract? 

 

Answer:  

See pages 4 thru 8: Section 1 – The Schedule: Minimum and maximum amounts. 

See page 35: Section 2: Addendum to Contract Clauses FAR and DOSAR Clauses not 

prescribed in Part 12:  52.232-19 Availability of funds for the next fiscal year (APR 1984).   



29. Question:  

How are students selected to receive this Language Training?  

 

Answer:  

Direct-hire employees and family members can apply for the program. They must receive 

the necessary approvals from their supervisor, HR, and Finance.  

 

30. Question:  

Can the government expand on what locally required licenses and permits are applicable 

for this contract?  

 

Answer: 

The contractor is required to be in full compliance with all Belgian Worker compensation 

and employment laws.   

 

31. Question:  

By which date will be contract be assigned?  

 

Answer:  

We anticipate that the contract effective date will be September 1, 2014. HR will provide 

the Contractor with enrollment forms and list of students by close of business September 

3, 2014. Classes are expected to begin on September 15
th

.  

 

32. Question:  

When will the services need to start be provided by the new contractor?  

 

Answer:  

See answer for question 31 

 

33. Question:  

Are there only classes held at U.S. Embassy premises?  

 

Answer:  

See page 3:  Section 1- The Schedule, Price 1.2: “Classes will be held on the Embassy’s 

premises, the USNATO premises or in private offices within the Brussels metropolitan 

area”.   

 

34. Question:  

Can we get a list of parts – articles –paragraphs that need to be competed/answered – cf. 

Introduction to the meeting & going through the tender. 

 

Answer: 

Please review Section 3 of the solicitation.  

 

35. Question:  

Test on progress provided periodically – choice of frequency pages 13-14. 



Bi-weekly after every 6 hours?  (3hrs/week x 2 weeks) 

 

Answer:  See question 20 and corresponding answer.  

 

36. Question: 

page 13: will the FSI provide test? Do we need to use those for the bi-weekly? 

 

Answer:  See question 20 and corresponding answer. 

 

37. Question: 

How long does the clearance procedure takes?  

 

Answer: up to 120 days.  

 

38. Question: 

Do we only provide 1 hardcopy for the tender?  

 

Answer:  

See question 5. 

 

39. Question:  

Are the field trips organized per class or for all students?  

 

Answer:  

See question 3. 

 

40. Question: 

What is (approx.. ) proportion of :  

- French/Dutch classes 

individual/group courses 

 

Answer: 

See questions 9 and 10. 

 

41. Question:  

What is bought by the school (dictionaries CDs, BOOKS) Does it stay property of the US 

Embassy at the end of the contract?  

 

Answer: 

Yes.  Individual learning materials cease to be the vendor’s property.  

See on page 11:  Section 1, paragraph 4. Contractor Furnished Personnel and Property. 

 

42. Question:  

 Will there be classes held at NATO?  

 



Answer:  

See question 33. 

 

43. Question:  

How are the teachers evaluated by the students? 

 

Answer:  

See Section 1- The Schedule, paragraph 7.1 Quality Assurance and Surveillance Plan 

including 7.1.3 (h) Procedures.   

 

44. Question:  

What happens if a student/group is not happy with their teacher? 

 

Answer:  

See Section 1- The Schedule:  Quality Assurance and Surveillance Plan, 7.1.3. (h) 

Procedures. The COR will investigate each complaint received, make a fair assessment of 

the complaint, and proceed according to the steps noted in this Section.   

 

45. Questions:  

Do the groups have to follow a specific book?   

 

Answer:  

See question 27. 

 

46. Question:  

Can you confirm the start date of the contract?  

 

Answer:  

See question 31. 

 

47. Question:  

How many students per session? 

 

Answer:  

See page 3: Section 1- The Schedule, paragraph 1.2 Price:  

“The classes will be either individual or a group of students no less than three students and 

not to exceed 7 students”. Each 60 minutes of class, whether individual or group, 

represents 1 session.  

 

48.  Question: 

How many classrooms are there? 

 

Answer: 



There are 6 classrooms as shown during the site visit of April 29,2014. 

 

49. Question:  

Who assigns the classrooms to the teachers? 

 

Answer:  

The vendor assigns the classrooms as appropriate as the vendor handles the administration 

of the contract.  

 

50. Question:  

Are all the computers located in one room? 

 

Answer:  

Yes. The Government anticipates two desktop computers with internet access in one 

room.  

 

51. Question: 

Do the teachers need to reserve the equipment to use in the classrooms? 

 

Answer:  

This falls under the realm of the contractor’s administrative responsibilities. 

See Amendment A003:  Section 1- The Schedule, paragraph 5 Specific Tasks: 

 “The Contractor shall take care of the administration of the Language Training Program, 

including reserving USG classrooms and equipment”.  

 

52. Question:  

 Can material be moved from one classroom to another? 

 

Answer:  

Yes.  

53. Question: 

      Can the teachers bring their own laptops and computers? 

 

     Answer:  

     Yes. 

 

54. Question:  

Is there wi-fi? 

 

Answer:  



No.  

 

55. Question:  

“Who supplies the dictionaries?” 

 

Answer: 

The vendor.  See question 10. 

 

56. Question:  

How many classes are held at one time? 

 

Answer:  

This falls under the realm of the contractor’s administrative responsibilities. 
See page 12: Section 1- The Schedule, paragraph 5 Specific Tasks: 

 “The Contractor shall take care of the administration of the Language Training Program, 

including the organization of field trips. 

 

57. Question:  

Block 12, what discount terms are you referring to?  
 

Answer:  Discount terms for prompt payment.  

 

 

58. Question:  

      Has the Government decided on an acquisition strategy?  

 

      Answer:  

   Yes. See page 45, Evaluation Factors:  “Award will be made to the lowest  

 priced, technically acceptable, responsible offeror.  
 

59. Question: 

Is there an incumbent contractor providing these services?  

 

Answer:  

See question 24.  

 

60. Question: 

will Dutch and French be the only languages for training?  

 

Answer:  

Yes. 

 

61. Question:  

      Ref:  5.1.5 Student Counseling (page 14 of 66) 

Is this weekly counseling and bi-weekly discussion of progress to be included in the 

4,000 hours industry is to price for, or is this instructor time to be included as an Other 

Direct Cost (ODC)?  



 

Answer:  

This is part of the administrative costs and should be included in your pricing (page 4 

thru 8) under firm and fixed cost per session.  
 

 

62. Question: 

       Could you clarify: would the foreign languages be ESL for Dutch/French speakers or  

       Dutch/French for English speakers? 

 

       Answer:  

       The Dutch/French language training is for English speakers.        
 

 

 


